
                                  

AGENDA

For a meeting of the
ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

to be held on
TUESDAY, 11 SEPTEMBER 2018

at
10.30 AM

in
STUDIO 4, THE GUILDHALL ARTS CENTRE, ST PETER'S HILL, 

GRANTHAM.  NG31 6PZ
Aidan Rave, Chief Executive    

Chairman
Councillor Mike Exton

Councillor Ashley Baxter
Councillor Nick Craft
Councillor Bob Russell

Councillor Brian Sumner
Councillor Rosemary Trollope-Bellew 
(Vice-Chairman)
Councillor Martin Wilkins

Invited Cabinet Members
Councillor Dr Peter Moseley Cabinet Member for Environment

Support Officer: Lucy Bonshor Tel: 01476 406120
E-mail: l.bonshor@southkesteven.gov.uk 

Members of the Committee are invited to attend the above meeting to consider 
the items of business listed below.

1  COMMENTS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC 

To receive comments or views from members of the public at the Committee’s 
discretion.

2  MEMBERSHIP 

The committee to be notified of any substitute members.

3  APOLOGIES 

4  DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS 

Members are asked to disclose any interests in matters for consideration at the 
meeting.



5  ACTION NOTES FROM THE MEETING HELD ON 20TH JUNE 2018 (Pages 3 - 8)

(Enclosure)

6  UPDATES FROM THE PREVIOUS MEETING 

7  TAXI LICENSING AND THE EQUALITY ACT 2010 (Pages 9 - 34)

Report CSL131 from the Cabinet Member for Environment.
(Enclosure)

8  FOOD INSPECTIONS 

Presentation by the Food, Health and Safety Officer.

9  FOOD TRIAL UPDATE 

Members to receive an update on the current trial taking place.

10  TRADE WASTE 

11  ENVIRONMENT ENFORCEMENT TEAM 

Members to receive an update.

12  ANY OTHER BUSINESS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN, BY REASON OF SPECIAL 
CIRCUMSTANCES, DECIDES IS URGENT 



MEETING OF THE
ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW 
AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

WEDNESDAY, 20 JUNE 2018,
10.30 AM

COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT

Councillor Ashley Baxter
Councillor Nick Craft
Councillor Mike Exton (Chairman)
Councillor Breda Griffin
Councillor Bob Russell
Councillor Martin Wilkins

CABINET MEMBERS
Councillor Dr Peter Moseley Cabinet Member for Environment 

OFFICERS

Strategic Advisor Housing Lead Regeneration (Tracey Blackwell)
Assistant Director Commercial and Operational (Ian Yates)
Head of Street Scene (Keith Rowe)
Food, Health and Safety Officer (Pauline Wright)
Democratic Officer (Lucy Bonshor)

1. MEMBERSHIP

The Committee were notified that Councillor Griffin was substituting for 
Councillor Trollope-Bellew.

2. APOLOGIES

An apology for absence was received from Councillor Brian Sumner.

Page - 3

Agenda Item 5



3. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

None disclosed.

4. ACTION NOTES FROM THE MEETING HELD ON 24TH APRIL 2018

Action notes from the meeting held on 24th April 2018 were noted.

5. UPDATES FROM THE PREVIOUS MEETING

The Chairman informed the Committee that the street lighting recommendation 
was due to be considered by Cabinet at their July meeting.  A workshop on the 
response to the Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy (JMWMS) 
consultation had been held on Monday and a draft response was being 
compiled following the workshop.   It was confirmed that education had been 
raised for inclusion as a clear objective within the strategy.  A copy of the 
response would be circulated to Members.

 Action Note

That a copy of the completed JMWMS consultation be circulated to 
Members of the Committee.

The Head of Street Scene confirmed that an e-mail had been circulated about 
the number of missed bins as had been asked for at the last meeting of the 
Committee.

6. GROUNDS MAINTENANCE SERVICE - DELIVERY MODEL REVIEW

The Cabinet Member for Environment presented report ENV696 which 
concerned the Ground Maintenance Service which was currently provided 
through a contract with Glendale Grounds Maintenance Limited which would 
expire in February 2019.  The contract covered grounds maintenance services 
for all the District Council owned parks, gardens, public amenity grass areas 
and the Council’s housing related stock.

He reminded Members that the Committee had discussed the extension of the 
current contract for a further year at their meeting in December. The report 
explores other options for delivery of the service.  Due to the time constraints 
with the contract ending a decision needed to be made on how the service was 
provided in the future.  

Expenditure on Grounds Maintenance Services was significant with an annual 
investment of £1m over the last four years for General Fund (two thirds) and 
Housing Revenue Account services (one third). 

In order to do a like for like comparison a huge amount of work had been done 

Page - 4



to split out and understand what the current contractors were contracted to do.
From the information available four options were outlined within the report:

 Option 1 – contract out the service through competitive tender
This would continue the service as is with the process of producing a 
specification and associated documents against which suitable 
contractors would be invited to bid against.  Re negotiating the current 
contract would not be appropriate as other degrees of flexibility would be 
needed moving forward.

 Option 2 – In-source the service utilising directly employed Council 
employees and Council owned equipment
The Council would manage the service directly employing its own 
workforce and investing in plant and equipment. Transfer of 
Undertakings Protection of Employment (TUPE) rules would also be a 
requirement.

 Option 3 – Deliver the service through a SKDC Local Authority 
Controlled Company
The service would be provided in a slightly different way with a Teckal 
exemption where the contracting authority had sufficient control of a 
separate entity established to provide the service which carries out at 
least 80% of its activities for the owner authority. This would allow for a 
proportion of commercial revenue to be made.

 Option 4 – Deliver the service through an established Local Authority 
Company
The service would be through a joint venture agreement with an already 
established joint venture company such as NORSE based in Norwich.  
There would be some degree of benefit associated with this option but 
not to the extent of option 3.

In order to evaluate the delivery options a range of objectives for the service 
had been identified;

 Cost
 Flexibility and responsiveness
 Income generation
 Quality of service and performance

These had been evaluated and were shown in Appendix 1 to the report.  A 
graph showing the delivery option appraisal results was also included within the 
report.  It was stressed that this was a subjective analysis of the information 
known on a like for like basis.

Members noted that very little difference could be seen with regard to cost 
apart from option 3 and this was in respect of the commercial aspect.  Flexibility 
of the service was a key aspect and how resources could be diverted if the 
service was directly run by the Council.

It was also noted that if option 1 was the preferred route then costs would 
increase.  The extension of the contract for one year had resulted in a 4% uplift. 

Page - 5



Work done on behalf of Lincolnshire County Council (LCC) with regard to grass 
cutting verges had been extracted from the contract as they had made a 
material change to cutting verges from five to two.  LCC now had a contract 
direct with Glendale.

The Committee then discussed the options before them.  It was stressed that 
the information before Members had a subjective element across all areas and 
the scores given were based on the information available.

It was felt that either option 2 or 3 where the way forward and a Member asked 
about what capital costs were involved as they could be significant.  Capital 
costs were dependent upon the chosen option but an initial capital budget 
request of £400,000 was proposed.  It was stressed that any expenditure had 
to be value for money.    The Member proposed that Option 3 was the way 
forward.  Further discussion then followed with Members asking/commenting 
on the following;

- What commercial possibilities there were currently
- Possibility that parish councils would use the proposed service, following the 

success of the Big Clean
- To be mindful and not over extend ourselves too far, too fast
- Key to success would be the management of the service
- Option 3 gave the option to “look outside the box”
- How employees would be affected, terms and conditions (non Teckal)
- Depending upon profits, ability to move arrangements to a company
- Suggestions that areas to look at first would be in the public sector including 

parish councils, health authorities etc
- How a Teckal company would work with regard to profits and staff – it would 

be significantly different from Gravitas
- Flexibility in running the company ourselves

All Members agreed that option 3 appeared to be the way forward and the 
recommendation to propose this option as the way forward was seconded and 
unanimously agreed.
Recommendation:

The Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee recommended that 
Option 3 - provision for the delivery of the Grounds Maintenance Service 
through a SKDC Local Authority Controlled Company be looked at as a 
way forward for the provision of the Grounds Maintenance Service. 

7. WORK PLAN FOR FOOD AND HEALTH & SAFETY ENFORCEMENT 
2018/19

(11:30am Councillor Craft left the meeting)

The Cabinet Member for Environment presented report ENV695. 

Page - 6



Each year the Council had to produce a Work Plan for Food and Health & 
Safety Enforcement as required by the Food Standards Agency (FSA).  This 
was done by the relevant Cabinet Member as a Non Key Decision.  However, 
the Cabinet Member was keen for the Committee to be aware of the work 
undertaken by the Environment Health Service which kept the public safe and 
was why it had come to the Committee.  

Environmental Health Services constantly worked behind the scenes testing 
food outlets, checking tattoo parlours and testing water to keep the public safe. 
The report included tables which gave a profile of the food businesses within 
South Kesteven.  How they compared nationally, together with a table showing 
the inspection frequency of businesses within South Kesteven, to help 
Members understand better the valuable work the section carried out.    

Pauline Wright from the Environmental Health team then spoke to Members 
about the work carried out by the section.  She gave examples of 
noncompliance with food hygiene standards, how these premises were dealt 
with, the process for inspecting premises and what a zero rating system meant.  
She also spoke about the Health and Safety Executive enforcement codes. 
Businesses had a legal duty to report accidents. These accidents were risk 
based and depending upon that base would depend upon whether an accident 
was investigated or not.  Investigations into fatal accidents were time 
consuming and could take years to conclude.  Constructions sites were 
covered by the Health and Safety Executive not by Environmental Health 
Services.  

The Chairman informed the Committee that a more in depth report on food 
hygiene and the star rating would be coming to the next meeting.  Members 
agreed that the work plan for Food and Health and Safety Enforcement for 
2018/19 should be approved by the Cabinet Member Environment.

Recommendation:

The Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee recommended that 
the Cabinet Member for Environment approved the Work Plan for Food 
and Health and Safety Enforcement for 2018/19.

8. DRAFT WORK PROGRAMME

A copy of the draft work programme had been circulated with the agenda.   The 
Chairman confirmed that an in depth look at Food Hygiene would be an item on 
the next agenda.  It was also confirmed that a service specification with regard 
to the Grounds Maintenance contract would be considered now that the 
Committee had decided which direction to move forward in.  Electric vehicle 
charging points were mentioned and it was stressed that this item was for 
consideration by the Committee with regard to feasibility and numbers.

Page - 7



The issue of having a guest speaker to talk to the Committee was suggested 
with regard to the Grounds Maintenance Contract perhaps from the Wildlife 
Trust or the Woodland Trust to talk about bio diversity. It was stated that this 
was perhaps something that would be better suited to an all Member briefing to 
give Members more opportunity to ask questions as per the briefing on the food 
waste trials.  

9. CLOSE OF MEETING

The meeting closed at 12 noon.

Page - 8



ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW 
AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Report of: Councillor Dr Peter Moseley
Cabinet Member for Environment

Report to:

Date:

Subject:

Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee

11 September 2018

Taxi Licensing and the Equality Act 2010 – CSL/131

Decision
Proposal:

Key Decision

Relevant 
Cabinet 
Member:

Councillor Dr Peter Moseley
Cabinet Member for Environment

Report author:

Reviewed by:

Signed off by:

Approved for 
publication

Mandy Braithwaite Legal Executive
01476 406106 m.braithwaite@southkesteven.gov.uk 
Date: 18 July 2018

Anne-Marie Coulthard, Head of Environmental
01476 406319  a.coulthard@southkesteven.gov.uk 
Date: 3 August 2018 

Lucy Youles Solicitor to the Council
01476 406105 l.youles@southkesteven.gov.uk 
Date: 5 August 2018

Councillor Dr Peter Moseley
Date:  8 August 2018

SUMMARY

The provisions of the Equality Act 2010 (“the Act”), have been amended in respect of 
wheelchair accessible hackney carriages and private hire vehicles.  The provisions allow 
a licensing authority to create a list of “designated vehicles”, which are capable of carrying 
passengers in wheelchairs (section 167) and  requires drivers of those vehicles to provide 
mobility assistance (section 165).

Section 172 of the Act enables vehicle owners to appeal to the Magistrates Court against 
the decision of a local authority to include their vehicles on a designated list.

Page - 9

Agenda Item 7

mailto:m.braithwaite@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:a.coulthard@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:l.youles@southkesteven.gov.uk


Once an authority decides to create an ‘approved list of designated vehicles’ it would be 
an offence for a licensed driver of a designated vehicle, unless they have been granted 
a medical exemption by the local authority, to fail to comply with the duty to provide 
mobility assistance.  Drivers may appeal under Section 172 of the Act, to the Magistrates 
Court against the decision of a Local Authority not to issue an exemption certificate.

By creating a list of designated vehicles, the Council will be able to publish and make 
clear to the public, vehicle operators and drivers, the licensed vehicles capable of carrying 
a passenger in a wheelchair and the assistance the drivers of those vehicles will be 
required to provide.

RECOMMENDATION

1.That the Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee  determine whether to 
recommend to Cabinet to implement the provisions of section 165, 166 and 167 of the 
Equality Act 2010 

2. If the Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee recommend that the provisions 
are implemented, that they recommend to Cabinet that the draft policy as set out at 
Appendix E is adopted and included in the  Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing 
Policy.

1. BACKGROUND TO REPORT

1.1 The Government has introduced provisions in the Equality Act in relation to the 
assistance of passengers in wheelchairs using designated taxi and private hire 
vehicles.  Statutory guidance has been issued by the Department of Transport in 
support of this to which local authorities must have regard.

1.2 These provisions allow a licensing authority to create a list of “designated 
vehicles” which is a list of vehicles which are capable of carrying passengers in 
wheelchairs (section 167) and then require drivers of those vehicles to carry 
passengers in wheelchairs, provide assistance to those passengers and 
prohibits drivers from charging extra for this service, (section 165).  The 
requirements of section 165 do not apply to drivers who have a valid exemption 
certificate and are displaying a valid exemption notice in the prescribed manner.  
An exemption certificate can be issued under section 166 of the Act, which is in 
force.  Section 166 allows local authorities’ to exempt drivers from the duties 
under section 165 where it is appropriate to do so, on medical grounds or 
because the driver’s physical condition makes it impossible or unreasonably 
difficult for them to comply with those duties.  A copy of sections 165, 166 and 
167 of the Act is attached at Appendix A.

1.3 Section 167 of the Act states that a local authority “may maintain a list of 
vehicles”.  This is a discretionary power rather than a duty. Unless the Cabinet 
determines the Council is under no legal obligation to establish and maintain a 
list.  The guidance issued by the Department for Transport “recommends 
strongly” that licensing authorities do maintain such a list.  Section 1.12 states 
“Whilst licensing authorities are under no specific legal obligation to maintain a 
list under section 167, the Government recommends strongly that they do so.  

Page - 10



Without such a list the requirements of section 165 of the Act do not apply, and 
drivers may continue to refuse the carriage of wheelchair users; fail to provide 
them with assistance; or charge them extra”.

1.4 Section 172 of the Act enables vehicle owners to appeal against the decision of 
a local authority to include their vehicle(s) on the designated list.  The appeal 
must be made to the Magistrates court within 28 days of the vehicle in question 
being included on the published list.

1.5 There are currently 342 hackney carriage vehicles and 33 private hire vehicles.  
Of those, 3 hackney carriage vehicles and 3 private hire vehicles are classed as 
able to carry passengers in their wheelchairs.

1.6 S165 sets out the duties placed on drivers of designated wheelchair accessible 
taxis and private hire vehicles.  These duties are:-

 To carry the passenger while in the wheelchair;
 Not to make any additional charge for doing so;
 If the passenger chooses to sit in a passenger seat, to carry the 

wheelchair;
 To take such steps as are necessary to ensure that the passenger is 

carried in safety and reasonable comfort; and 
 To give the passenger such mobility as is reasonably necessary.

“Mobility assistance” is defined in the Act as assistance:

 To enable the passenger to get into or out of the vehicle;
 If the passenger wishes to remain in the wheelchair, to enable the 

passenger to get into and out of the vehicle while in the wheelchair;
 To load the passenger’s luggage into or out of the vehicle;
 If the passenger does not wish to remain in the wheelchair, to load the 

wheelchair into or out of the vehicle.

1.7 It is an offence for a licensed driver, driving a vehicle on the designated list, unless 
exempt, to fail to comply with the duties outlined at paragraph 1.6 above.

1.8 Where a driver has a medical or physical condition, which makes it impossible or 
unreasonably difficult for them to provide the sort of physical assistance which 
these duties require, the local authority may grant exemptions from the duties to 
individual drivers under the provisions of section 166 of the Act.  Drivers who are 
granted exemptions will be issued with an exemption certificate and a notice to 
display on the vehicle.  The purpose of the notice is to clearly communicate with 
passengers in wheelchairs that the driver has been exempted from the duties to 
provide assistance.

1.9 The driver’s obligations to comply with section 165 apply regardless of where the 
journey starts or ends.  If a driver fails to comply with their duties, it would be 
appropriate for the licensing authority to review whether or not the driver remains 
a fit and proper person to hold a licence.

1.10 South Kesteven District Council does not currently publish a list of designated 
wheelchair accessible vehicles, although the South Kesteven District Council 

Page - 11



Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Policy does encourage the provision of 
wheelchair accessible vehicles.  A copy of paragraph 2.3 of the Policy is attached 
at Appendix B.  

1.11 If it is determined that the licensing authority should maintain such a list, a number 
of steps will be taken as outlined below:-

 Prepare a draft list of wheelchair accessible vehicles
 Set out policy for exempting drivers on medical and physical condition 

grounds
 Inform owners that their vehicles will be placed on the list and alert 

drivers to their upcoming duties
 Drivers apply for exemptions where necessary
 Licensing authority issues driver exemptions where necessary
 Licensing authority publishes list of designated wheelchair accessible 

vehicles and duties on drivers then take effect

1.12 In accordance with the Act, all of the Council’s licensed drivers, proprietors and 
operators have been notified of accessibility requirements which licensing 
authorities should apply in relation to the provision and other aspects of our 
function under this new approach prior to determining whether we will maintain 
a designated list and place all our wheelchair accessible vehicles on this list. The 
notification is at Appendix C. No responses were received to the notification.

2. OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

2.1 The Council could determine not to implement the provisions of the Act.

3. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS
 
3.1 There are no resource implications other than the cost of appeals against the 

decisions made to include a vehicle on the designated list.

4. RISK AND MITIGATION 

4.1 Risk has been considered as part of this report and no specific risks have been 
identified.

5. ISSUES ARISING FROM IMPACT ANALYSIS (EQUALITY, SAFEGUARDING 
etc.)

5.1 These measures within the Equality Act are designed to prevent discrimination 
and improve equality for people who are disabled.  An equality impact analysis 
has been carried out.  A published list of designated wheelchair accessible taxis 
will enable people to identify accessible vehicles which are able to carry 
passengers in their wheelchairs.   Appendix D

Page - 12



6. CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS

6.1 The new requirements, if enacted, carry a criminal penalty if a licensed driver on 
the designated list fails to comply with the provisions of the Act by refusing to 
carry out the duties listed in paragraph 1.6 above and doesn’t have an exemption 
certificate to excuse him/her from those duties.

7. COMMENTS OF FINANCIAL SERVICES

7.1 There are no specific financial implications associated with this report, however, 
in the event of licensed vehicle owners making an appeal against a decision of 
the local authority to include their vehicle(s) on the designated list, which was 
then subsequently upheld, the council may incur legal costs.

8. COMMENTS OF LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES

8.1 The implementation of the provisions are discretionary rather than a legal duty.  
There is an option for the Council not to implement the provisions. The 
implementation will assist those with a disability to establish which taxi are 
suitable for their use and provide them with assistance which would not otherwise 
be available.

8.2 A driver of a designated taxi or designated private hire vehicle commits an  
offence by failing to comply with the requirements to carry and assist passengers 
who use a wheelchair, (if implemented),  and if found guilty will be liable  on 
summary conviction to a fine. 

9. COMMENTS OF OTHER RELEVANT SERVICES 

9.1 None.

10. APPENDICES

Appendix A – Equality Act 2010 ss. 165, 166 and 167
Appendix B – Extract (paragraph 2.3) SKDC Hackney Carriage and Private   

                                  Hire Licensing Policy
Appendix C – Letter of notification to drivers, proprietors and operators
Appendix D – Equality Impact Assessment
Appendix E – Draft Medical Exemption Policy  

11. BACKGROUND PAPERS

Access for Wheelchair Users to Taxis and Private Hire Vehicles – Statutory 
Guidance
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachme
nt_data/file/593350/access-for-wheelchair-users-taxis-and-private-hire-vehicles.pdf 

South Kesteven District Council Hackney and Private Hire Licensing Policy
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/chttphandler.ashx?id=5215&p=0

Page - 13

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/593350/access-for-wheelchair-users-taxis-and-private-hire-vehicles.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/593350/access-for-wheelchair-users-taxis-and-private-hire-vehicles.pdf
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/chttphandler.ashx?id=5215&p=0


Page - 14



Page - 15



Page - 16



Page - 17



Page - 18



Page - 19



Page - 20



Page - 21



Page - 22



Appendix D

1

South Kesteven District Council

Equality Impact
(Initial Analysis)

Access for wheelchair users to Taxis and Private Hire Vehicles

Lead officer:
 Anne-Marie Coulthard
Assessors:
Anne-Marie Coulthard
Mandy Braithwaite

Service Area:

Neighbourhoods
(Licensing)

Neutral Assessor:
Carol Drury

Date of Meeting 

08/02/18

Page - 23



Appendix D

2

1. Name and description of policy/service/function/strategy

Access for wheelchair users to Taxis and Private Hire Vehicles

Section 167 of the Equality Act provides Licensing Authorities with the power 
to make lists of wheelchair accessible vehicles (i.e. “designated vehicles”), 
and section 165 of the Act then requires the drivers of those vehicles to carry 
passengers in wheelchairs, provide assistance to those passengers and 
prohibits them from charging extra.

The legislation came into force in April 2017 and the Council is considering 
whether to establish a list of designated vehicles.  

If it is agreed the South Kesteven District Council Hackney Carriage and 
Private Hire Licensing policy will need to be amended to reflect the 
provisions.

Is this a new or existing policy? Existing

2. Complete the table below, considering whether the proposed 
policy/service/function/strategy could have any potential positive,  or 
negative impacts on groups from any of the protected characteristics (or 
diversity strands) listed, using demographic data, user surveys, local 
consultations evaluation forms, comments and complaints etc.

Equality Group

Does this 
policy/service/function/strat
egy have a positive or 
negative impact on any of 
the equality groups? 

Please state which for each 
group

Please describe why the 
impact is positive or 
negative.
If you consider this policy 
etc is not relevant to a 
specific characteristic 
please explain why  

Age Neutral Not a determinant of this policy

Disability Positive A published list of designated 
wheelchair accessible taxis will 
enable people to identify 
accessible vehicles which are 
able to carry passengers in 
their wheel chairs

Page - 24



Appendix D

3

Positive

Positive

Positive

Positive

Designated wheelchair 
accessible vehicles will be 
required to display a notice 
informing passengers that they 
carry passengers in 
wheelchairs making 
identification easier.

Where there is a list of 
designated wheel chair 
accessible vehicles, drivers of 
these vehicles will be unable to 
refuse carriage of wheelchair 
users, charge them more or 
fail to provide them with 
assistance 

Wheelchair users will be able 
to choose whether to travel in 
their wheelchair or be assisted 
to transfer from their 
wheelchair into the vehicle.  

Drivers of hackney or private 
hire vehicles that are 
designated vehicles, but who 
are unable to assist 
passengers due to their own 
disability, medical condition or 
physical conditions will be able 
to apply for an exemption to 
the provisions.   Drivers may 
appeal to the Magistrates 
Court against a decision not to 
award an exemption.

Race Neutral Not a determinant of this policy

Gender 
Reassignment

  

Neutral Not a determinant of this policy

Religion or 
Belief  

Neutral Not a determinant of this policy

Page - 25



Appendix D

4

Sex

  

Neutral Not a determinant of this policy

Sexual 
Orientation

Neutral Not a determinant of this policy

Pregnancy and 
Maternity

Neutral Not a determinant of this policy

Marriage and 
Civil 
Partnership

Neutral Not a determinant of this policy

Carers Neutral Not a determinant of this policy

Other Groups 
(e.g. those from 
deprived (IMD*) 
communities; 
those from rural 
communities, 
those with an 
offending past)

*(IMD = Indices 
of multiple 
deprivation)

Low income households – 
positive

Where there is a list of 
designated wheel chair 
accessible vehicles, drivers of 
these vehicles will be unable to 
charge wheelchair users more 

General 
comments

Wheelchair users are better informed about the accessibility of 
the taxi and PHV fleet in their area, confident of receiving the 
assistance they need to travel safely, and not charged more 
than a non-wheelchair user for the same journey.

To be placed on a licensing authority’s list a vehicle must be 
capable
of carrying some – but not necessarily all – types of occupied 
wheelchairs. The Government recommends that a vehicle 
should only be included in the authority’s list if it would be 
possible for the user of a “reference wheelchair” to enter, leave 
and travel in the passenger compartment in safety and 
reasonable comfort whilst seated in their wheelchair. A 
“reference wheelchair” is defined as a wheelchair which has a 
total length of 1200mm (including extra-long footplates); a total 
width of 700mm and a sitting height (from ground to top of head) 

Page - 26



Appendix D

5

of 1350mm. The footrest height above the floor is 150mm. This 
approach means that some types of wheelchair, particularly 
some powered wheelchairs, may be unable to access some of 
the vehicles included in the list.

3. What equality data/information did you use to inform the outcomes of 
the proposed policy/service/function/strategy? (Note any relevant 
consultation who took part and key findings)

The Civica Authority Public Protection database which is used by the 
Licensing team to maintain information relating to taxi licensing has been 
used to identify vehicles which would be considered accessible under the 
Equality Act.  Letter to vehicle licence holders informing them that the 
Council is considering publishing a list.  No responses have been received.

If there are any gaps in the consultation/monitoring data, how will this 
be addressed?

Individual drivers who have a medical condition or a disability or physical 
condition which makes it impossible or unreasonably difficult for them to 
provide the sort of physical assistance which these duties require will be able 
to apply for exemptions from the duties.

4. Outcomes of analysis and recommendations (please note you will be 
required to provide evidence to support the recommendations made): 
Please check one of the options.   

a) No major change needed: equality analysis has not identified any 
potential for discrimination or for negative impact and all 
opportunities to promote equality have been taken

If you have checked option a) you can now send this form to the Lead 
Officer and your Neutral Assessor for sign off

b) Adjust the proposal to remove barriers identified by equality analysis 
or to better promote equality. 

If you have checked option b) you will need to answer questions b.1 and 
b.2 

c) Adverse impact but continue

Page - 27



Appendix D

6

If you have checked option c) you will need to answer questions c.1

d Stop and remove the policy/function/service/strategy as equality 
analysis has shown actual or potential unlawful

b.1 In brief, what changes are you planning to make to your proposed 
policy/service/function/strategy to minimise or eliminate the negative 
equality impacts?

b.2 Please provide details of whom you will consult on the proposed 
changes and if you do not plan to consult, please provide the rationale 
behind that decision.  

If you have checked option b) you will need to complete a Stage 2 equality 
analysis

c.1 Please provide an explanation in the box below that clearly sets out your 
justification for continuing with the proposed policy/function/service/ 
strategy.

If you have checked option c) you will need to complete a Stage 2 equality 
analysis. You should consider in stage 2 whether there are sufficient plans to 

reduce the negative impact and/or plans to monitor the actual impact.

Signed (Lead Officer):  AM Coulthard
(Name and title) Anne-Marie Coulthard. Business Manager, Environmental Health 

Date completed: 08/02/18 

Signed (Neutral Assessor): Carol Drury
(Name and title) Community Engagement and Policy Development Officer 

Date signed off:    09/02/18

Page - 28



APPENDIX  E

South Kesteven District Council

Equality Act 2010

Policy in Relation to Hackney Carriage 
Drivers and Private Hire Vehicle Drivers

Applications for Wheelchair Exemptions

(Draft)

June 2018

Page - 29



1

Contents

CONTENTS

Section 1 – Introduction

Section 2 – South Kesteven District Council

Section 3 – Medical Exemptions

Section 4 – How to apply for Medical Exemptions 

Section 5 – Notice of Exemption 

Section 6 – Medical Certificates

Section 7 – Expired Medical Certificates

Section 8 – Summary 

Page - 30



2

1 INTRODUCTION
THE EQUALITY ACT 2010

1.1 Section 165 of the Equality Act 2010 places the following duties on drivers 
whose vehicles are on the list of designated wheelchair accessible hackney 
carriage (taxi) and private hire vehicles:
 To carry the passenger while in the wheelchair;
 Not to make any additional charge for doing so;
 If the passenger chooses to sit in a passenger seat, to carry their 

wheelchair;
 To take such steps as are necessary to ensure that the passenger is 

carried in safety and reasonable comfort;
 To give the passenger such mobility assistance as is reasonably required.

1.2 Section 167 of The Act permits the Licensing Authority to designate Hackney 
Carriages and Private Hire Vehicles as being wheelchair accessible. The 
Department for Transport’s Statutory Guidance on Access for wheelchair 
users recommends that vehicles should only be included in the list it is would 
be possible for the user of a “reference wheelchair” to enter, leave and travel 
in the passenger compartment in safety and reasonable comfort whilst seated 
in their wheelchair. A reference wheelchair is illustrated below:

  

1.3 All hackney carriage drivers have an obligation under Section 53 of 
the Town Police Clauses Act 1847 without reasonable excuse, to 
carry any person wishing to hire them within the licensing area.

Page - 31



3

1.4 Under the Equality Act 2010, it is now a separate lawful requirement for all 
drivers of designated wheelchair accessible taxis or private hire vehicles to 
carry wheelchair users, unless they are in possession of an exemption 
certificate issued by the Council in accordance with that Act.

1.5 A licensed driver who fails to comply with any of the above Equality Act 
provisions (unless he/she holds a relevant exemption certificate) is guilty of an 
offence and may receive a fine if convicted.

2. SOUTH KESTEVEN DISTRICT COUNCIL

2.1 South Kesteven District Council is committed to an accessible public transport 
system in which disabled people can enjoy the same opportunities to travel as 
other members of society. Taxis and private hire vehicles are a vital link in the 
accessible transport chain. It is important that disabled people who use 
wheelchairs can have confidence that the taxi they find on a rank, or hail on 
the street, will accept them and carry them in their wheelchair at no extra 
charge. The same is true in relation to a wheelchair accessible private hire 
vehicle that they may seek to book in advance.

3. MEDICAL EXEMPTIONS

3.1 Under the terms of Section 166 of the 2010 Act the Council may provide an 
exemption to these wheelchair duties, to drivers who have genuine medical 
conditions which are aggravated by assisting people in wheelchairs.

3.2 The Council is responsible for issuing exemption certificates and needs to be 
satisfied that it is appropriate to do so on medical grounds.

3.3 In circumstances where a driver either has a temporary or permanent medical 
condition preventing the performance of their duty towards disabled 
passengers the driver may apply for a medical exemption certificate from the 
Council.

3.4 However, at the same time drivers are reminded that the Authority reserves 
the right to review the status of a driver’s licence if the medical condition 
detailed on the exemption application indicates that it may not be appropriate 
for the individual to continue to hold a driver’s licence with the Authority.

3.5 In exempting drivers from the duties to assist passengers in wheelchairs the 
Council needs to be satisfied that it is appropriate to do so on medical 
grounds or because the driver’s physical condition makes it impossible or 
unreasonably difficult for them to comply with their duties.

Page - 32



4

3.6 All applicants for a long or short term medical exemption certificate will be 
required to have their application determined by the Council’s Licensing 
Officers acting under delegated powers.

3.7 The Licensing Officer will normally abide by the GP or qualified medical 
assessor’s opinion on whether an exemption is to be issued or not and 
whether the exemption is permanent or temporary.  Any disputes regarding 
their decision may be appealed to the Council’s Licensing Committee.

4. HOW TO APPLY FOR A MEDICAL EXEMPTION

4.1 The Council will consider two types of exemption – a temporary exemption or 
a lifetime exemption. Lifetime exemptions will only be granted in exceptional 
circumstances.

4.2 In accordance with the statutory guidance issued by the Department for 
Transport (DFT) as an absolute minimum, we require drivers to undergo 
medical assessments by a GP or in certain circumstances, such as disputed 
GP assessments, by a professional who has been specifically trained, who 
holds appropriate professional qualifications and who are independent of the 
applicant such as Blue Badge Scheme assessors.  

4.3 The assessment report must detail exactly what duties can not be undertaken 
and why.

4.4 The process undertaken by applicants for an exemption is that they complete 
an application form (available from the Council’s Website) LINK and their 
medical practitioner or qualified assessor completes a separate part of the 
same form which outlines the medical condition.

4.5 The cost of the certification must be borne by the applicant.

5. NOTICE OF EXEMPTION

5.1 Following a grant of an exemption, the driver will be sent a letter informing 
them of the grant and an official vehicle notice will be issued to them. By law 
this notice must be put on public view in the vehicle to inform wheelchair 
users that the driver has an exemption.

5.2 In addition, this Authority has decided that the driver will be issued with an A5 
sized laminated card carrying a photo of the driver plus their licence number 
and other relevant information. The driver will be asked to carry this A5 sized 
card in order to prevent the exemption being fraudulently transferred, and for 
other relevant compliance purposes.

5.3 Upon expiry of a temporary exemption, this Authority will deem the driver fit to 
undertake all duties unless a second application for exemption and Doctor’s 
note is received. 

Page - 33



5

6. MEDICAL CERTIFICATES

6.1 All expired exemption notices and identity cards must be returned to the 
Licensing Team as soon as possible and no later than 5 working days or 
SKDC penalty points will be issued.  Repeated failure to return the documents 
may result in the driver being referred to the Council’s Licensing Committee 
for them to determine whether or not the driver remains a fit and proper 
person to continue to driver a hackney carriage or private hire vehicle in the 
South Kesteven District.

7. SUMMARY

7.1 In summary, hackney carriage drivers and private hire vehicle drivers whose 
vehicles are on the designated wheelchair accessible hackney carriage (taxi) 
and private hire vehicles list are not permitted to refuse disabled persons, 
unless the driver holds a medical exemption certificate issued by the Council 
excusing him/her from such duties.

Page - 34


	Agenda
	5 Action Notes from the meeting held on 20th June 2018
	7 Taxi Licensing and the Equality Act 2010
	APPENDIX A
	APPENDIX B
	APPENDIX C
	APPENDIX D
	APPENDIX E._


